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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of

Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)
Prince Balagtas Avenue Extension

Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga

Report on the Audits of the Financial Statements
Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc. (the “Company”) as at

June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the six
months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for the year ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

o the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020;

e the statements of total comprehensive income for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
and for the year ended December 31, 2020;

o the statements of changes in equity for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for the
year ended December 31, 2020;

o the statements of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for the year
ended December 31, 2020; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www.pwe.com /ph

Isla Lipana &_Cn. is the Philippine member firm of the PwC network. PwC refers to the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.



.

pwc Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of

Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)
Page 2

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
March 16, 2020 and June 28, 2019, respectively.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Pochg¢lp C. Domondon
Partn
CPA Cert. No. 108839
P.T.R. No. 0011401; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1567-AR-1, Category A; effective until May 27, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.I.N. 213-227-235
BIR A.N. 08-000745-128-2019; issued on January 14, 2019; effective until J anuary 13, 2022
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
July 29, 2021
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Statement Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of

Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)
Prince Balagtas Avenue Extension

Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga

We have audited the financial statements of Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(the “Company”) as at and for the six months ended June 30, 2021, on which we have rendered the
attached report dated July 29, 2021. The supplementary information shown in Schedules A, B, C, D, E,
F, and G, Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration and the Map
showing the relationships between and among the Company and its ultimate parent company, middle
parent, subsidiaries or co-subsidiaries, and associates, as additional components required by Rule 68
of the SRC, are presented for purposes of filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are
not required parts of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information has been prepared in
accordance with Rule 68 of the SRC.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Pochidlo C. Domondon
Pa r
CPA Cert. No. 108839
P.T.R. No. 0011401; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1567-AR-1, Category A; effective until May 27, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.I.N. 213-227-235
BIR A.N. 08-000745-128-2019; issued on January 14, 2019; effective until January 13, 2022
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
July 29, 2021
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Statement Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC)

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of

Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)
Prince Balagtas Avenue Extension

Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga

We have audited the financial statements of Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.
(the “Company”) as at and for the six months ended June 30, 2021, on which we have rendered the
attached report dated July 29, 2021.

In compliance with Rule 68 of the SRC and based on the certification received from the Company’s
corporate secretary, the Company has only one (1) shareholder owning one hundred (100) or more
shares as at June 30, 2021.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Pochglo C. Domondon
Partn
CPA Cert. No. 108839
P.T.R. No. 0011401; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1567-AR-1, Category A; effective until May 27, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.I.N. 213-227-235
BIR A.N. 08-000745-128-2019; issued on January 14, 2019; effective until January 13, 2022
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
July 29, 2021
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Statement Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of

Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)
Prince Balagtas Avenue Extension

Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing the financial statements of
Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc. (the “Company”) as at June 30, 2021 and December 31,
2020, and for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for the year ended December 31,
2020, and have issued our report thereon dated July 29, 2021. Our audits were made for the purpose
of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary
Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions, formulas, calculations, and
their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance
defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is presented for the purpose of
complying with the revised Rule 68 of the SRC issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. The
components of these financial soundness indicators have been traced to the Company’s financial
statements as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, and for the six months ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 and no material
exceptions were noted.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Pochojo C. Domondon
Partner
CPA Cert. No. 108839
P.T.R. No. 0011401; issued on January 5, 2021 at Makati City
SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1567-AR-1, Category A; effective until May 27, 2022
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A;
valid to audit 2020 to 2024 financial statements
T.I.N. 213-227-235
BIR A.N. 08-000745-128-2019; issued on January 14, 2019; effective until January 13, 2022
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
July 29, 2021

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, F: +63 (2) 8845 2806, www.pwe.com,/ph

Isla Lipana &_Cu. is the Philippine member firm of the PWC network. PwC refers to the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.



Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Statements of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020
{With comparative figures as at Decemnber 31, 2019)
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

June 30, December 31, December 31,
Notes 2021 2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 45,206,666 71,737,473 47,064,583
Trade and other receivables, net 4 60,172,013 258,905,233 128,630,106
Prepayments and other current assets 5 14,979,354 11,601,430 11,443,248
Total current assets 120,358,033 342,244,136 187,137,937

Non-current assets
Property, plant and squipment, net 6 1,360,757,737  1,380,337.430 1,449,496,776
Investment properties 8 234,545,502 - -
Right-of-use asseat, net 20 38,622,122 39,685,116 41,811,104
Other non-current assets 7 9,112,435 8,975,048 8,668,208

Total non-current assets

1,643,037,796

1,438,997, 594

1,490,976,088

Total assets

1,763,395,829

1,781,241,730

1,687,114,025

Current liabilities

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Trade payabtes and other liabilities 9 40,792,135 125,610,375 78,379,762
Loans payable 10 - 126,446,281 120,813,719
Lease liabilities 20 309,746 294,139 21,201
Total current liabifities 41,101,881 252,350,795 199,314,682
Non-cusrent liabilities
Loans payable, net of current portion 10 - 909,808,551 974,342 172
Lease liabllities, net of current portion 20 50,545,608 51,060,996 51,410,357
Due to a related party 11 180,224,852 - -
Retirement benefit obligation 13 157,336 2,915,664 -
Other non-current liability 12 - - 1,056,802
Total non-current liabilities 230,927,896 963,786,211 1,026,809,431
Total liabilities 272,029,777 1,216,137,006 1,226,124,113
Equity
Share capital 14 539,999,009 539,999,990 539,960,990
Deposits for future shares subscription 14 837,010,568 - -
Remeasurement on retirement benefits 13 50,804 - -
Retained earnings (Deficit) 114,304,591 25,104,725 {79,010,087)
Total equity 1,491,366,052 565,104,724 460,989,912

Total liabilities and equity

1,763,3985,829

1,781,241,730

1,687,114,025

The notes on pages 1to 44 are integral part of these financial statements.
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Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Notes to the Financial Statements

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, and for the six months ended June 30, 2021
and 2020 and for the year ended December 31, 2020

{With comparative figures and notes as at December 31, 2019 and

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018)

(All amounts are shown in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

Note 1 - General information
(a) Corporate information

Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc. (the “Company”) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 15, 2010. The Company's primary objective is ta
explore, develop and utilize renewable resources with particular focus on solar and wind energy
generation; to design, construct, erect, assemble, commission and operate power-generating plants and
related facilities for the conversion of renewable energy into usable form fit for electricity generation and
distribution; and to perform other ancillary and incidental activities as may be provided by and under
contract with the Government of the Republic of the Philippines, or any subdivision, instrumentality or
agency thereof, or any government-owned and controlled corporation, or other entity engaged in the
development, supply and distribution of renewable energy.

The Company was registered with the Philippine Board of Investments (BOI) on October 16, 2015 as a
renewable energy developer of solar energy resources under the Renewable Energy Act of 2008, Republic
Act (RA) No. 9513.

The Company’s 22.33 megawatt (MW) Clark Solar Power Project in Clark, Freeport Zone, Pampanga was
successfully commissioned on March 12, 2016 through the confirmation of the Department of Energy
(DOE) covering its Solar Energy Service Contract {SESC) No. 2014-07-086 and Amended Certificate of
Commerciality No. SCC-2015-03-014-8 with validity of 25 years.

Prior to May 17, 2018, the Company is 66.25% owned by Mabalacat Solar Philippines, Inc., a company
ineorporated in the Philippines and 57.75% owned by Lumos Investment Pte. Limited (Lumos), a
company incorporated in Singapore.

On May 17, 2018, the Company’s shareholders entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with Citicore
Renewable Energy Corporation (the “Parent Company”), a company incorporated in the Philippines and
is engaged in power generation under the Renewable Energy Law, with the latter acquiring 100% of the
Company's share capital making the Company a wholly owned subsidiary. The Certificate Authorizing
Registration {(CAR) for the transfer of shares of previous shareholders to the Parent Company was issued
by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) on March 18, 2019 and June 2, 2020.

The Company’s ultimate parent company beginning May 17, 2018 is Citicore Holdings Investment, Inc., a
company incorporated in the Philippines as a holding company engaged in buying and holding shares of
other companies.



On May 25, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) and shareholder approved, among others, the
following amendments to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation (AOT):

Change of corporate name to Citicore Energy REIT Corp.;

Amendment of the primary purpose to that of a real estate investment trust. The amended primary
purpose of the Company is to engage in the business of owning income-generating real estate assets,
including renewable energy generating real estate assets, under a real estate investment trust (REIT)
by virtue of RA No. 9856, otherwise known as the “Real Estate Investment Trust Act of 2000” and its
implementing rules and regulations;

¢ Provision of additional corporate powers in relation to the amended primary purpose;

» Change of principal office address from Prince Balagtas Avenue Extension, Clark Freeport Zone,
Pampanga to 11F, Rockwell Santolan Town Plaza, 276 Col. Bonny Serrano Avenue, San Juan City,
Metro Manila;

» Change of term of existence to have perpetual existence;

Increase in the number of directors to eight (8);
Increase of authorized share capital to P3.84 billion divided into 15.36 billion common shares with
par value of Po.25 per share;

+ Inclusion of express waiver of pre-emptive right to subscribe from the Company’s unissued shares,
increase in its authorized share capital or its treasury shares;

» Compliance with the lock-up requirements under the Listing Rules of the Philippine Stock Exchange,
Inc. (PSE);

¢ Removal of the contractual restrictions on the disposition of the shares; and

* Inclusion of additional restriction on transfer of shares provided under RA No. 9856 and its
implementing rules and regulations.

As at July 29, 2021, the Company’s submission to the SEC for the foregoing amendments is pending
approval.

As at July 29, 2021, the Company is in the process of completing and finalizing all statutory requirements
in connection with the planned listing and offering of its shares to the public with the PSE,

(b) Approuval and authorization for the issuance of financial statements

These financial statements have been approved and authorized for issuance on July 29, 2021 by
Mr. Oliver Tan, President and Chief Executive Officer, as authorized by the Company’s BOD.

Note 2 - Segment information

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of the products
and services that are being marketed. Each segment represents a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets. The Company has operations only in the Philippines.
The Company derives revenue from two {2) main segments as follows:

(a) Sale of solar energy

This business segment pertains to the generation of electricity from solar power energy throngh its Clark
Solar Power Project. Transco is the Company’s sole customer for its sale of solar energy.

{b) Leasing

This business segment pertains to the rental operations of the Company with related parties which will
cominence after June 30, zoz21,

(2)




As at June 30, 2021, only the investment property amounting to P234,545,502, which consists of several
parcels of land, is attributable to the operating segment asset of the leasing segment (Note 8). The rest of
the assets and liabilities of the Company is attributable to the operating segment assets and liabilities of
the sale of solar energy segment. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, all the Company’s assets and
liabilities were attributable to the operating segment assets and liabilities of the sale of solar energy
segment.

For the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and
2018, all of the Company’s revenue and expenses are atiributable to the sale of solar energy segment.
Leasing operations are expected to commence in November 2021 (Note 25).

All revenues of the Company are from domestic entities incorporated in the Philippines, hence, the

Company did not present geographical information required by Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) 8, “Operating Segments”.

Note 3 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

2021 2020 2019

Cash on hand 60,000 35,000 31,000
Cash in banks 6,892,983 12,763,953 1,321,944
Short-term placements 38,253,683 58,938,520 45,711,638
45,206,666 71,737,473 47,064,583

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term placements represent money
market placements or short-term investments with maturities up to three (3) months and annual interest
ranging from 0.0625% to 1.00% (2020 - 1.23% to 1.85%; 2019 - 3.70% t0 4.00%).

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term placements are as follows:

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
Note 2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Interest income 18 107,703 406,414 662,181 2,075,226 2,142,409

Note 4 - Trade and other receivables, net

Trade and other receivables, net consist of:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

Note 2021 2020 2019

Trade receivables 60,172,013 41,996,272 36,324,140

Due from related parties 11 - 216,908,961 90,361,870

60,172,013 258,905,233 126,686,010

Other receivable 1,944,096 1,944,096 1,944,098
Allowance for doubtful account of

other receivable (1,944,096) (1,944,066) -

- 1,944,096

60,172,013 258,905,233 128,630,106

(3)




Trade receivables are generally collectible within a 60-day period. In accordance with the Renewable
Energy Payment Agreement (REPA), in the event that National Transmission Corporation {TransCo)
tails to pay any amount stated in the feed-in tariff (FIT) statement of account upon the lapse of one
billing period from the relevant payment date, TransCo shall pay to the Company such unpaid amount
plus interest thereon, calculated from the relevant payment date to the day such amount is actually paid.
Interest rate is the rate prevailing for a 91-day treasury bill plus 3%. Details of interest income arising
from late paymments of TransCo are as follows:

Six manths ended June 30 Years ended December 31
Note 2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
interest income 18 - - - 35,233 7,078,931

During 2018, the Company recognized interest income related to discounting of receivables amounting
to P2.43 million (Note 18),

Movements in the discount on receivables for the year ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Note Amount
Beginning 1,652,710
Interest income 18 {2,431,867)
Amortization 18 779,257

There were no transactions that would warrant recognition of discount on receivables for the six months
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Other receivable pertains to a refund for overpaid insurance. During 2020, the Company provided an
allowance for doubtful accounts for this receivable amounting to P1.94 million due to the changesin its
credit quality. The provision was recognized as part of operating expenses in the statements of total
comprehensive income (Note 17).

The Company does not hold any collateral as security. Management believes that an allowance for
doubtful accounts as at June 30, 2021, December 31, 2020 and 2019, except for other receivables which
has been fully provided for, is not necessary since these account balances are deemed fully collectible.
Trade receivables are all current in nature and all previous billings were collected in full.

None of the trade and other receivables that are fully performing have been renegotiated,

Note 5 - Prepavments and other current assets

Prepayments and other current assets consist of:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

2021 2020 2019

input value-added tax (VAT) 9,629,634 9,435,619 9,403,280
Advances to suppliers 3,576,761 481,558 -
Advances to employees 887,739 217,509 134,976
Prepaid taxes 856,900 1,430,404 1,854,350
Others 28,320 36,340 50,642
14,979,354 11,601,430 11,443,248

Input VAT represents VAT on purchases of goods and services which can be recovered as either tax credit
against future cutput VAT or through refund.

Advances to suppliers represent prepayment of supplies or services which will be delivered or rendered
within the next 12 months.
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Prepaid taxes include overpayment of withholding taxes and income taxes.

Note 6 - Property, plant and equipment, net

Details and movements of property, plant and equipment, net are as follows:

Substation and

Solar plant  transmission Computer Service
and equipment lines equipment vehicle Total
Cost
January 1, 2019 1,664,296,964 44,477,618 - - 1,708,774,582
Additions during 2019 - - 40,000 135,500 175,500
December 31, 2019 and 2020,
and June 30, 2021 1,664,296,964 44 477 618 40,000 135,500 1,708,950,082
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2019 195,085,235 5,223,350 - - 200,308,585
Depreciation 55,914,483 3,204,430 10,000 15,808 59,144,721
December 31, 2019 250,899,718 8,427,780 10,000 15,808 258,453,306
Depreciation 55,014,483 3,204,430 13,333 27,100 59,159,346
December 31, 2020 306,514,201 11,632,210 23,333 42,808 318,612,652
Depreciation 27,957,260 1,602,218 6,667 13,550 29,579,693
June 30, 2021 334,871,461 13,234,426 30,000 56,458 348,192,345
Net book values
June 30, 2021 1,329,425,503 31,243,192 10,000 79,042 1,360,757,737
December 31, 2020 1,357,382,763 32,845,408 16,667 82,592 1,390,337,430
December 31, 2019 1,413,297 248 36,049,838 30,000 119,692 1,449,496,776

The Clark Solar Power Project was funded through a Term Loan Facility Agreement with Development
Bank of the Philippines {DBP). The solar plant and equipment include capitalized borrowing costs
amounting to P13.69 million. The Company's solar plant and equipment is pledged as collateral under
the chattel mortgage agreement entered into in relation to this agreement. On May 4, 2021, the Parent
Company assumed the Company’s outstanding loan with DBP. As at June 30, 2021, the chattel mortgage
was still attached on the solar plant and egnipment, awaiting finalization of rescindment of the mortgage

agreement with the DBP.

Depreciation expenses are recognized as follows:

Six months ended June 30

Years ended December 31

Notes 2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Cost of services 16 29,550,476 29,550,456 59,118,913 59,118,013 71,880,066
Operating expenses 17 20,217 20,217 40,433 25,808 -

29,579,693 29,579,673 59,159,346 59,144,721 71,880,065

Additions for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to P37,799 which were all paid in cash during
2018. This was reported as part of investing activity in the statements of cash flows. There were no
additions for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and for the vear ended December 31, 2020.

In 2019, management assessed, based on internal evaluations, that they will be able to utilize the solar
plant and equipment for up to 30 years and substation and transmission lines for up to 15 years from the
start of commercial operation which is also aligned with industry practice. As such, the BOD approved
the change in estimated useful life of solar plant and equipment from 23 years to 30 years and substation

and transmission lines from 23 years to 15 years.

The change in estimated useful life is considered to be a change in accounting estimate accounted for
prospectively by recognizing the effect of the change in the period of change and firture periods until the
end of the useful life. The net effect of the change in useful life is decrease in depreciation expense
annually amounting to P12.74 million starting 2019 to 2031 and P15.95 million starting 2032 to 2040

and increase amounting to P55.91 million from 2041 to 2045.

(5)



Based on the results of management assessment, the Company believes that there were no indicators of
impairment as at June 30, 2021, December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Note 7 - Other non-current asseis

Other non-current assets consist of:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

Note 2021 2020 2019

Electric utility deposits 6,580,541 6,580,541 6,580,541
Security deposits 20 1,779,310 1,779,310 1,779,310
Restricted cash 752,584 515,197 308,357
9,112,435 8,975,048 8,668,208

Electric utility deposits represent deposits to an electric power distribution company which are to be
refunded after the service is terminated and all bills have been paid.

Restricted cash pertains to cash deposited in a local bank pursuant to Section 5() of RA No. 7638,
otherwise known as, the “Department of Energy Act of 19927, Energy Regulation No. 1-94. Under the
regulation, generation companies and/or energy resource development facilities shall set aside one
centavo per kilowatt-hour of the total electricity sold as financial benefits to the host communities.

Note 8 - Investiment properties

On May 25, 2021, the Company and Parent Company, executed a deed of assignment whereas the latter
hereby assigns, transfers, and conveys a parcel of land located in Brgy. Armenia, Tarlac City, Tarlac to the
former, absolutely, and free from all liens and/or encumbrances, valued at P4,865,286 in consideration
for the issuance of Company’s shares upon approval of the SEC of the Company’s application for the
increase in authorized share capital. On the same date, the Company and Citicore Solar Tarlac 1, Ine.
{CST1) (formerly nv vogt Philippine Solar Energy Three, Inc.), an entity under common control, executed
a deed of assignment whereas the latter hereby assigns, transfers, and conveys several parcels of land
located in Brgy. Armenia, Tarlac City, Tarlac to the former, absolutely, and free from all liens and jor
encumbrances valued at P229,680,216 in consideration for the issuance of Company’s shares upon
approval of the SEC of the Company’s application for the increase in authorized share capital (Note 14).
These parcels of land are recognized in reference to its fair value.

While the beneficial ownership and physical possession of the parcels of land has been conveyed to the
Company through the assignment and subscription of shares, the actual transfer and registration of the
parcels of land to the Company’s name are still in process and have not yet been completed as at June 30,
2021.

The aggregate fair value of these parcels of land as determined by an independent appraiser as at
March 31, 2021 amounted to P593,887,000. Management has assessed that there are no significant
changes in the fair value of the parcels of land as at June 30, 2021 from the date of appraisal. The fair
value of the parcels of land was estimated by the independent appraiser using the Sales Comparison
Approach which considers the sales of sirnilar or substitute properties and related market data. This
approach falls under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 24.5). The unobservable key inputs to
determine the fair value of the land are location characteristics, size and use of the land and time
element.

(6)



The unobservable key inputs used to determine the fair value the parcels of land are as follows:

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
Location 0% 1o (5%)
Size 5% to 15%
Use 10%
Time element 0%

The current use of the parcels of land is its highest and best use.

There was no rental income received and expenses incurred in relation to these parcels of land for the six
months ended June 30, 2021,

Note g - Trade pavables and other liabilities

Trade payables and other Habilities consist of:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

Note 2021 2020 2019

Trade payables 5,811,705 6,794,533 6,647,557
Due to government agencies 33,696,139 85,508,641 66,787,314
Accrued expenses 1,184,281 1,390,283 1,254,086
Interest payable 10 - 31,816,918 3,690,805
40,792,135 125,610,375 78,379,762

Trade payables are normally due within a 30-day period.

On May 6, 2021, the Company settled a portion of its due to government agencies with a local
government unit amounting to P51.86 million by paying P22.17 million through compromise settlement.
The difference of the obligation settled and the actual payment amounting to P25.2 million was
recognized as part of other income, net in the statements of total comprehensive income (Note 18). The
remaining balance of due to government agencies pertains to unpaid business taxes to a local
government unit.

Accrued expenses mainly include utilities, operations and maintenance expenses.

Note 10 - Loans payable

Details of loans payable consist of:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Current 126,446,281 120,913,719
Non-current 909,808,551 974,342 172

1,036,255,832  1,095,255,891
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Movements in loans payable are as follows:

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
2021 2620 2020 2019 2018

Principal amount

Beginning 1.043,181,818 1,104,545,454  1,104,545,454 1,227,272,727 1,350,000,000

Assignment of lpan (1,011,570,248) - - - -

Payments {31,611,570) (30,681,818) (61,363,636) (122,727,273) {122,727,273)

Ending - 1,073,863,636  1,043,181,818 1,104,545,454 1,227,272,727
Debt issuance cost

Beginning (6,925,986) (9,289,563) (9,289,563) {11,258,274) (12,843,045)

Amortization 6,925,986 973,046 2,363,577 1,968,711 1,684,771

Ending - {(8,316,517) (6,925,986) (9,289,563) (11,258,274)

- 1.065,547,119  1,036,255,832 1,095,255,891 1,216,014,453

Development Bank of the Philippines

In 2016, the Company entered into a P1.35 billion Term Loan Facility Agreement with DBP. The facility
was entered to finance the construction of Clark Solar Power Project. The entire facility was drawn on
December 9, 2016,

The loan has a term of 12 years, maturing on December 8, 2028, inclusive of one (1) year grace period
and is payable in forty-four equal quarterly installments commencing on the fifth quarter from the date
of initial drawdown. The Company shall pay interest at fixed rate based on the bank’s prevailing rate
under the relevant program applied for and determined on the date of initial drawdown, subject to a floor
rate of 5% per annum, payable quarterly commencing at the end of the first quarter from the date of
initial drawdown and subject to adjustment by the bank at such rate as it may be determined at the end
of fifth and tenth year of the loan.

As long as the loan agreement is in effect and until the payment is full and all other amounts due under
the agreement has been collected by the bank, the Company agrees, unless the bank otherwise consent in
writing, that the Company will not declare or pay dividends to its shareholder, other than dividends
payable solely in shares of its share capital, or retain, retire, purchase or otherwise acquire any class of its
share capital, or make any other capital or other asset distribution to its shareholders. Further, the
Company shall maintain at all times during the entire term of the loan a debt-to-equity ratio (DER) of
not exceeding 2:1 and current ratio and debt service coverage ratio of less than one (1) as defined in the
Term Loan Facility Agreement. In 2019, the Company substantially complied with most of the covenants
except for one (1) ratio which was covered by a bank waiver. As December 31, 2020, the Company has
complied with these covenants.

In March 2020, the government enacted the granting of a 30-day grace period for all loans with principal
and/or interest falling due within the Enhanced Community Quarantine period without incurring
interest on interest, penalties, fees and other charges pursuant to Republic Act No. 11649, also known as
the “Bayanihan to Heal as One Act”. The Company availed of the deferral of its principal payment and
interest due to DBP which in result spreads the deferred principal and interest amount to the remaining
payments to be made for the remaining term of the loan. The impact of the deferral is not material hence
no gain or loss on loan modification was recognized.

On May 4, 2021, the Parent Company assumed the Company’s outstanding loan with DBP with principal
balance amounting to P1.01 billion. Consequently, the Company derecognized the loan and the
corresponding interest payable amounting P13.02 million as part of due to a related party (Note 11).

No gain or loss was recognized for the loan assignment. As a result of the assignment, the Company
became indebted to its Parent Company for the same amount. Subsequently, the Parent Company used a
portion of the amount reclassified as due to a related party amounting to P602.47 million to subscribe on
the Company’s common shares to be taken from the increase in authorized share capital (Note 14). These
are considered as non-cash transactions.
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Details of finance costs including amortization of debt issuance cost recognized in the statements of total

comprehensive income are as follows:

Six months ended June 30

Years ended December 31

Note 2021 2020 2020 2018 2018
Finance costis 18 24,973,910 30,068,302 60,028,178 65,040,216 70,381,262
Movements of interest payable are as follows:
Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Beginning 31,916,918 3,690,805 3,690,805 3,975,000 4,616,963
tnterest expense net of
amortization of debt issuance
cost 18,047,924 29,085,256 57,664,601 63,071,505 68,606,491
Assumed by Parent Company (13,024,012) - - - -
Interest payments (36,940,830) (14,812,914} (29,438,488) (63,355,700) (69,338,454)
Ending - 18,163,147 31,916,918 3,690,805 3,975,000
Lumos

In December 2016, the Company entered into a loan facility agreement with Lumos amounting to

US$40 million or P1.57 billion with an annual interest of 8%.

In February 2017, the loan payable to Lumos amounting to P363.48 million was applied as payment to
the subscription receivable following the SEC’s approval of the Company’s application to increase its

authorized share capital.

As part of the share Sale and Purchase Agreement between Lumos and Citicore Power, Inc,, the
immediate parent company of the Parent Company (Note 1), the loan and related interest payable
amounting to 243,749,400 and P7,319,372, respectively, were assumed by the Parent Company. The
movements of loans payable to Lumos for the year ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:

MNote Amount
Beginning 278.620827
Payments 11 {(58,863,289)
Foreign exchange losses 23,991,862

Assumed by Parent Company

11 {243,749,400)

Ending

The assumption of loan by the Parent Company is considered as a non-cash transaction.

Total finance cost recognized for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to P15,598,080 (Note 18).
Total interest paid for the year ended December 21, 2018 amounted to P18,994,811. This was recognized
as part of cash flows from financing activities in the statements of cash flows.
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(a) Advarices

Advances to (from) related parties are made to finance working capital requirements or to assume
receivables and payables to (from) related parties and/or third parties. Advances to related parties are
unsecured, with no guarantee, non-interest bearing, eollectible on demand and are expected to be
collected in cash or offset with outstanding liability. Advances from related parties are unsecured, with
no guarantee, non-interest bearing, and are expected to be settled in cash or offset with outstanding
receivable. As at June 30, 2021, the Parent Company and the Company agreed to offset all related party
receivables and payables resulting to a net payable to the Parent Company amounting to P180,224,952.
The offset amounts as at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Amount

Receivables 210,292 672
Payables (390,517,624)
{180,224,052)

There was no offsetting as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

In addition, as agreed by the Company and the Parent Company, the latter will not demand any
settlement from the former for more than twelve (12) months after June 30, 2021.

(b) Loan assignment

The loan assignment was recognized as part of due to a related party. Details and movement of due to a
related party pertaining to the loan assignment for the period ended June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Notes Amount
Assignment of loan 10 1,011,570,248
Cash settiement 10 (31,611,570)
Subscription of shares 11fc) (602,465,066)
Ending amount subsequently classified as advances 377,493,612

(¢} Deposits for future shares subseription

Details of depasits for future shares subscription as at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Conversion of  Land properties

Notes advances exchange Total
Parent Company 8,14 602,465,066 4,865,286 607,330,352
CsT1 8,14 - 229,680,216 229,680,218

602,465,066 234,545,502 837,010,568

{d) Management fees

Management fees pertains to services provided by former immediate parent company to the Company
during 2018. There are no other management fees incurred and charged by related parties for the six
months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The Company’s management functions are being handled by the Parent Company at no cost. No short-

term or long-term compensation was paid to key management personnel for the six months ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.
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On July 26, 2021, the BOD approved Company’s material related party transaction policy to adhere with
SEC Memorandum Circular No. 10, Series of 2019 which include: the identification of related parties,
coverage of material related party transactions, adjusted thresholds, identification and prevention or
management of potential or actual conflicts of interests arising out of or in connection with the material
related party transactions, guidelines in ensuring arm’s length terms, approval of material related party
transactions, self-assessment and periodic review of policy, disclosure requirements, whistleblowing
mechanisms, and remedies for abusive material related party transactions. The BOD, with the assistance
of the Related Party Transaction Review and Compliance Committee (“RPTCC™), shall oversee, review, and
approve all related party transactions to ensure that these are conducted in the regular course of business
and on an arm’s length basis and not undertaken on more favorable economic terms to the related parties
than with non-related or independent parties under similar circumstances. The RPTRCC shall be granted
the sole authority to review related party transactions. Those falling within the materiality thresholds set
by the Company’s BOD shall require the approval of the Chief Executive Officer and/or President or the
BOD, as the case may be.

Note 12 - Other non-current liability

Other non-current liability as at December 31, 2019 consists of provision for asset retirement obligation
amounting to P1.06 million which pertains to the restoration costs of the leased land to its original
condition upon the termination of the lease agreement.

In 2020, the Company reversed the full amount of the provision as management assessed that this is no
longer expected to be settled or incurred wpon termination of the lease agreement.

In 2018, the Company recognized interest expense on accretion provision for asset retirement obligation
amounting to P43,168 (Note 18). No related interest expense was recognized for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

Note 13 - Retirement benefits

The Company provides for the estimated retirement benefits based on the requirements of RA No. 7641,
the “Retirement Pay Law”. Under the Retirement Pay Law, the retirement benefit obligation is
computed as one-half of monthly salary for every year of service, a fraction of six months being
considered as one whole year. The term one-half of monthly salary shall mean 15 days plus the one-
twelfth of the 13th month, and the cash equivalent of not more than five days service incentive leaves.

The retirement benefit obligation is determined using the “Projected Unit Credit” (PUC) method. Under
the PUC method, the annual normal cost for the portion of the retirement is determined as the amount
necessary to provide for the portion of the retirement benefit aceruing during the year. The latest
actuarial valuation was sought from an independent actuary as at June 30, 2021.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021
amounted to P157,336 (December 31, 2020 - P2,915,664, December 31, 2019 - nil).

The movements in present value of defined benefit obligation recognized in the statements of financial
position are as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2021 2020
Beginning 2,915,664 -
Current service cost 48,653 2,915,664
Interest cost 3,308 -
Reversal of retirement benefit obligation (2,757,395) -
Remeasurement gain arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions {44,744) -
Deviations of experience from assumptions {6,150) -
Ending 157,336 2,915,664
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Reversal of retirement benefit obligation relates to changes in expected retirement benefits to be paid by
the Company to employees. This is recognized directly in profit or loss a part of retirement benefit
(income) expense.

The components of retirement benefit (income) expense are as follows:

Six menths ended June 30 Year ended
Note 2021 2020 December 31, 2020
Current service cost ] 46,853 3,255,229 2,915,664
Interest cost 3,308 - -
Reversal of retirement benefit obligation (2,757,395) - -
16 (2,707,434} 3,255,229 2,915,664

The movements in remeasurement on retirement benefits for the six months ended June 30, 2021 are as
follows:

Amount
Beginning -
Remeasurement
Changes in financiat assumpfions (44,744)
Experience adjustment {6,150}
Ending (50,894)

Remeasurements during 2020 is not material due to insignificant changes in financial and demographic
assumptions and experience adjustments, hence, not recognized.

The principal assumptions used are as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2021 2020
Discount rate 5.34% 4.07%
Salary increase rate 5.00% 5.00%

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is measured in terms of actuarial assumptions such as
discount rate, salary increases and expected retirement age. The resulting amount was discounted based
on the spot yield curve calculated from the Bankers Association of the Philippines (BAP) PHP Bloomberg
. BVAL Reference Rates (BVAL) benchmark reference curve for the government securities market
(previously the PDEx (PDST-R2) market vields on benchmark government bonds) by stripping the
coupons from government bonds to create virtual zero coupon bonds. Salary increase rate was also
considered which comprise of the general inflationary inerease plus a further increase for individual
productivity, merit and promotion. The salary increase rate is set by reference over the period over
which benefits are expected to be paid.

The Company does not expect to create a fund in the next reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each significant
assumption on the defined benefit obligation, with all other assumptions held constant.

Impact on defined benefit

Change in obligation

assumption Increase Decrease
June 30, 2021
Discount rate +/-1.00% (0.03 million} 0.04 million
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% (.04 miltion {0.03 miliion)
December 31, 2020
Discount rate +/-1.00% (1.02 million) 0.01 million
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% 0.69 million {0.56 million)
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Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefits are as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2021 2020

One year to five years 81.802 1,580,324
More than five years to ten years 214,170 4,159,676
285,972 5,750,000

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2021is 17.8 years
{December 31, 2020 - 18.3 years).

Note 14 - Share capital; Deposits for future shares subsecription

Share capital

The Company’s share capital consists of:

December 31,
June 30, 2021 2020 and 2019
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Authorized share capital, issued and cutstanding

Common shares - P0.25 par value 2,159,8099,094 538,009,099 - -
Commeon class A - P1 par value - - 7,291,011 7,291,011
Comman class B - P13.5 par value - - 4,856,985 65,569,208
Redeemable preference shares A - P27 par value - - 1,729,822 48,707,894

Redeemable preference shares B - P364.5 par value -

1,153,448 420,431,796

539,899,989 539,999,909

The holders of common class A and B shares are entitled to the same rights and privileges except for the
right to dividend distribution whieh is in accordance with the par value ratio.

Redeemable preference shares A and B are non-convertible, non-voting and are redeemable at the option
of the Company at par value, plus any accrued and unpaid cash dividends. In case of dissolution or
liguidation, redeemable preference shares shall enjoy preference on the distribution of the Company’s
assets. Redeemable preference shares are not redeemable at the option of the holder.

Foreign nationals may own and hold common class B and redeemable preference shares B.

On March 12, 2021, the Company’s BOD and shareholder approved that the redeemable preferred shares
and other classes of common shares previously authorized and issued are and shall be convertible to one
class common share and reduced the par value of all previously issued shares to P0.25 per share.
Consequently, the Company amended its AOI to reflect the change and converted all its previously issued
shares to one class common share. The Company’s authorized share capital and issued and outstanding
shares amounted to P539,999,999 divided into 2,159,999,994 shares at Po.25 par value per share. The
related certificate of filing of amended AOI was approved by the SEC on May 31, 2021.

On May 26, 2021, the Company’s BOD and shareholder approved the increase in the authorized share
capital of the Company from P539,999,999 {composed of 2,159,999,994 shares at Po.25 par value per
share) to P3,840,000,000 {composed of 15,360,000,000 shares at P0.25 par value per share). As at
June 30, 2021, the SEC approval is still pending (Note 1).
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Depaosits for future shares subscription

(a) Advances from Parent Company to share conversion subscription

On May 26, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a subscription agreement with the Company to
subscribe 2,400,000,000 common shares to be taken from the increase in authorized share capital, upon
approval by the SEC for a total consideration of P602,465,066. The Parent Company assigned
P602,465,066 of its advances to fully pay the subscription price (Note 11). This is considered as a
non-cash transaction.

(b) Land properties for share subscription

On May 26, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a subscription agreement with the Company to
subscribe 19,461,142 common shares to be taken from the increase in authorized share capital, upon
approval by the SEC for a total consideration of P4,865,286. The Parent Company assighed a parcel of
land located in Brgy. Armenia, Tarlac in favor of the Company to fully pay the subscription price (Notes 8
and 11). This is considered as a non-cash transaction.

On the same date, CST1 entered into a subscription agreement with the Company to subscribe
918,720,864 common shares to be taken from the increase in authorized share capital, upon approval by
the SEC for a total consideration of P22¢,680,216. CST1 hereby assigns several parcels of land located in
Brgy. Armenia, Tarlac in favor of the Company to fully pay the subscription price (Notes 8 and 11). This is
considered as a non-cash transaction.

These parcels of land were recognized as investment properties as at June 30, 2021 {Note 8).

As at June 30, 2021, deposits for future shares subscription amounting to P837.01 million from the
subseriptions above were recognized as part equity in the statements of financial position since the
Company has met all the conditions required by SEC Financial Reporting Bulletin (FRB) No. 006 for
such recognition.

The application for the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC on May 25, 2021 (Note 1).

Note 15 - Revenues

On March 11, 2016, the DOE confirmed the declaration of commerciality of the Company's Clark Solar
Power Project under SESC No. 2014-07-086 (Note 1). The DOE confirmation affirms the conversion of
said SESC from pre-development to commercial stage.

On March 12, 2016, the Clark Solar Power Project started delivering power to the grid following its
commissioning. On June 3, 2016, the Clark Solar Power Project was issued a Certificate of Endorsement
(COE) for FIT Eligibility under COE-FIT No, §-2016-04-020 by the DOE. By virtue of the endorsement,
the Clark Solar Power Project is qualified to avail of the FIT system, upon the issuance by the ERC of the
Certificate of Compliance (COC). On November 22, 2016, the ERC issued the COC to the Company.

As aresult, the Company was entitled to the FIT rate per kilowatt hour of energy output for a period of
20 years from March 12, 2016.

On May 26, 2020, the ERC issued Resolution No. 06, Series of 2020, which pertains to the approval of
the adjustment of the FIT rate for 2016 entrants published on November 17, 2020 and shall take effect on
December 2, 2020.

TransCo is the regulating body of all the FIT-rate eligible energy providers. Ouitstanding receivables

under the FIT system due from TransCo amounted to P60.17 million as at June 30, 2021
(December 31, 2020 - P42.00 million; December 31, 2019 - P36.32 million) (Note 4).
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Note 16 - Cost of services

The components of cost of services are as follows:

Six months ended June 30

Years ended December 31

Notes 2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Depreciation and amortization 6,20 30,622,470 30,622,450 61,244,901 61,244,907 71,880,065
Utilities 2,008,564 2,324,098 4,033,938 5,051,365 4.816,814
Outside services 1,701,917 2,154,885 3,711,108 7,360,805 14,879,599
insurance 798,800 800,405 1,657,448 2,152,889 3,755,730
Salaries and wages 553,101 913,972 1,843,562 1,440,549 -
Repairs and maintenance 278,560 224424 1,023,368 3,233,016 -
Taxes and licenses 172,081 16,252,971 17,281,122 17,784,779 33,683,409
Retirement benefit (income)
expense 13 (2,707,434) 3,255,229 2,915,664 - -
Rentals 20 - - - - 9,544 772
Dthers 27,347 3,661 12,462 106,772 681,974
33,456,406 56,552,095 94,623,573 08,375,976 138,352,363
Note 17 - Operating expenses
The components of operating expenses are as follows:
Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
Notes 2021 2020 2020 2018 2018
Taxes and licenses 4,831,883 3,273,492 4,340,315 1,775,610 4,512,340
BDues and subscriptions 757,103 362,324 949,262 674,390 -
Charitable contributions 100,000 75,000 126,000 105,000 -
Professional fees 92,000 20,750 41,500 181,020 3,180,588
Communication, light and water 68,574 68,040 138,214 123,717 143,568
Transportation and travel 62,466 134,629 197,253 171,359 217,368
Repairs and maintenance 35,098 40,645 146,405 21,401 -
Depreciation 6 20,217 20,217 40,433 25,808 -
Bank charges 11,440 4,242 7,912 188,259 -
Provision for doubtful accounts 4 - 1,844,006 1,944,096 - -
Management fees 11 - - - - 33,943,488
Rentals 20 - - - - 476,541
Loss on direct write-off of rade
receivables - - - - 4,247,719
Others 318,439 18,027 56,569 120,267 389,054
8,395,320 5,862,462 7,987,959 3,386,831 47,121,074
Note 18 - Other income. net; finance costs
The components of ether income, net are as follows:
Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
Notes 2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Gain on compromise settlement
of due to government agencies 25,200,913 - - - 8,070,421
Interest income 3,4 107,703 406,414 682,181 2,110,459 11,653,307
Reversal of asset retirement
chligation - 1,058,802 1,056,902 - -
Recovery of assets written-off - - - - 3,500,000
Foreign exchange (losses) gains, net (2,004 (53,414 (15,321) (60,375) 3,906,498
25,306,612 1,409,902 1,703,762 2,050,084 27,130,226

During 2018, the Company recognized other income arising from recovery of security deposits previously

written-off.

In 2015, the Company recognized a provision amounting to P8.32 million related to government
agencies’ potential claims. During 2018, the remaining balance of provision amouniing to P8.07 million
was derecognized since the payment is no longer probable.
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The components of finance costs are as follows:

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31

Notes 2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Interests on
{_oans payable from DBP 10 24,973,910 30,058,302 60,028,178 65,040,216 70,381,262
Loan from a shareholder 10 - - - - 15,998,080
Lease liabilities 20 2,007,778 2,013,205 4,026,048 3,686,845 -
Discount on receivable from
a third party 4 - - - - 779,257
Financing related fees - - - - 420,000
Accretion of provision for asset
retirement obligation i2 - - - - 43,168
26,981,688 32,071,507 64,054,226 68,727,061 87,621,767

Note 19 - Income taxes

As a BOI-registered enterprise (Naote 1), the Company may avail the following incentives:

¢ Income Tax Holiday (ITH) for seven (7) years from date of actual commercial operation. The ITH
shall be limited only to the revenues generated from the sale of electricity of the Clark Solar Power
Project;

= Duty-free importation of machinery, equipment and materials including control and communication
equipment, within the first ten (10) years from the issuance of the DOE Certificate of Registration;
and

o Tax exemption on carbon credits,

The Company may also avail of certain incentives to be administered by appropriate government
agencies subject to the rules and regulations of the respective administering government agencies.

Deferred income taxes are determined using income tax rates in the period the temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. Realization of the future tax benefits related to deferred income tax
assets is dependent on many factors, including the Company’s ability to generate taxable income in the
future within the carry-over period of its unused tax losses. Management has considered this in reaching
its conclusion not to recognize deferred income tax assets. In addition, the Company is still subject to
ITH for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and for years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and
2018 until October 15, 2022.

The Company’s unrecognized deferred income tax assets arise from the following temporary differences:

December 31, December 31,

June 30, 2021 2020 2019
Accrued expenses 33,620,012 85,485,864 65,852,089
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,844 066 1,944,096 -
Excess of lease payments over interest on
lease liabilities and amortization of
right-of-use asset 561,383 2,038,390 1,890,751
Retirement benefit obligation 157,338 2,915,664 -
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 1,830 11,175 60,375
Net operating loss carryover (NOLCQO) - - 9,966,459
Provision for asset retirement obligation - - 209,753
36,284,657 92,395,189 77,979,427
Tax rate 10% 10% 10%
3,628,466 9,239,519 7,797,943
Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) - - 72,283
3,628,466 9,239,519 7,870,226
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The details of the Company’s NOLCO are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Year of incurrence Year of expiration 2020 2019

2016 2019 - 2,206,000

2018 2021 9,966,459 9,066,459

Total 9,866,459 12,172,459
Expired - (2,206,000)

Applied {(9,966,459) -

- 9,966,459

Where higher than normal income tax, the Company is required to pay MCIT equal to 2% of gross
income as required by the Tax Reform Act of 1997 for other operating income. This amount may
separately be offset against normal income tax labilities for the three (3} immediately succeeding taxable
years, The details of the Company’s unrecognized excess MCIT over normal income tax are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Year of incurrence Year of expiration 2020 2019
2016 2019 - 373
2017 2020 72,283 72,283
72,283 72,656

Expired (72,283) {373}
- 72,283

The reconciliation between income tax expense computed at the statutory tax rate and the actual income
tax expense as shown in the statements of total comprehensive income follows:

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Income tax at special tax rate of 10% 8,919,987 4,835,546 10,411,481 7,957,094 1,341,649
Income tax effects of:
Non-deductible expenses 309,255 16,842 27,599 88,271 89,267
Application of NCLCO - - - - 4,663,042
interest income subject to final tax {10,770) (40,641) {66,218) (207,523) {457,438)
Non-taxable income due to ITH (3,607,419) (6,033,220) {11,742,155) (5,307,253) (807,042)
Movement of unrecognized deferred
income tax assets {5,611,053) 1,221,373 1,369,283 {2.530,589)  (4,829,478)

The effective tax rate used for the computation of income taxes and related balances for all the periods
presented is at nil considering that the Company is still subject to ITH.

Note 20 ~ Lease

The Company leases a parcel of land where the Clark Solar Power Project was constructed. The
agreement was entered on September 5, 2014 and is valid for twenty-five (25) years, renewable by the
lessee upon consent of the lessor. The agreement stipulates rental payments amounting to Po.29 million
and US$105 with an escalation rate of 10% starting on the fourth year of the lease and every three (3)
years thereafter. Upon termination of the lease, the leased property shall revert back to the lessor. There
are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into the lease agreement.

Security deposits for the lease agreement amounting to P1.78 million were presented as part of other
non-current assets in the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2021, December 31, 2020 and
2019 (Note 7). These deposits are refundable to the Company upon termination of the lease agreement
or at the end of the lease term. The impact of discounting is deemed to be immaterial,
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The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

From January 1, 2019 (PFRS 16, “Leases”

The Company adopted PFRS 16 effective January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach and
opted not to restate comparative information. The Company measured the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at
January 1, 2019. The associated right-of-use assets for leases were measured at the amount equal to the
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any accrued rent or advance lease payments relating to the
lease recognized in the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018,

The effects of adoption of PFRS 16 on the Company’s financial statements as at January 1, 2019 are the
recognition of the following:

Increase
{Decrease)
Right-of-use asset 43,937,002
Lease liabilities 51,606,419
Advance lease payment {1,779.310)
Accrued rent (8,448,637
(@} Amounts recognized in the statements of financial position
Details of right-of-use asset, net and movements in the account are as follows:
Note Amount
Cost
Adoption of PFRS 16 at January 1, 2018,
December 31, 2019 and 2020, and June 30, 2021 43,837,092
Accumulated amortization
Adoption of PFRS 16 at January 1, 2018 -
Amortization 16 2,125,988
December 31, 2019 2,125,988
Amortization 16 2,125,988
December 31, 2020 4,251,976
Amortization 16 1,062,894
June 30, 2021 5,314,970
Net book vatue
June 30, 2021 38,622,122
December 31, 2020 39,685,116
December 31, 2019 41,811,104

Details of the lease Labilities are as follows:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

2021 2020 2019

Current 309,746 294,139 21,201
Non-current 50,545,608 51,060,996 51,410,357
50,855,354 51,355,135 51,431,558
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Movements in lease Habilities are as follows:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

2021 2020 2019
Beginning 51,355,135 51,431,558 51,606,419
Principal payments (501,611) (87,598) (235,236)
interest payments (2,007,778) {4,026,048) (3,686,845)
Interest expense 2,007,778 4,026,048 3,686,845
Translation difference 1,830 11,175 60,375
Ending 50,855,354 51,355,135 51,431,558

Translation difference is recognized as part of foreign exchange losses, net under other income, net in the
statements of total comprehensive income.

(b) Amounts recognized in the statements of total comprehensive income

Amounis recognized in the statements of total comprehensive income related to the lease agreement are
as follows:

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31

MNotes 2021 2020 2020 2019
Amoertization expense of right-of-use asset 18 1,062,884 1,062,994 2,125,988 2,125,988
Interest expense 18 2,007,778 2,013,205 4,026,048 3,686,845
Translation difference 1,830 53,414 11,175 60,375

3,072,602 3,129,613 6,163,211 5,873,208

The total cash outflows for the lease agreement are as follows:

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31

2021 2020 2020 2019
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 501,811 13,535 87,598 235,236
Payment of interest on lease liabilities 2,007,778 2,013,205 4,026,048 3,686,845

2,509,389 2,026,740 4,113,646 3,922,081

(e) Discount rate

The lease payments are discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate of 7.86%, being the
rate that the Company would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar

value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

(d) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in the lease agreement of the Company. These are nsed
to maximize the operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations.

The extension and termination options held are exercisable by the lessee upon consent of the lessor,
hence, the extension and termination options have not been included in lease term.
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(e) Reconciliation of operating lease cormmmitments and lease liabilities

The reconciliation between the operating lease commitments disclosed in applying PAS 17 as at

December 31, 2018 discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate and the lease liabilities
recognized as at January 1, 2019 is as follows:

Amount
Operating lease commitments, December 31, 2018 112,118,731
Discounting effect using incremental borrowing rate (60,510,312)
Lease liabilities, January 1, 2019 51,606,419

Prior to January 1, 2019 (PAS 17, “Leases”

Total rental expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 related to the lease agreement above
recognized in the statements of total comprehensive income is as follows:

Notes Amount

Cost of services 16 9,544,772
Operating expenses 17 476,941
10,021,713

The Company’s future minimum lease commitment arising from the lease agreement as at
Decernber 31, 2018 are as follows:

Amount
Within 1 year 3,856,086
Between 1 and 5 years 21,518,036
More than 5 years 86,742,609
112,116,731
Note 21 - Earnings per share {EPS)
Basic and diluted EPS are as follows:
Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Net income 89,198,784 48,376,486 104,114,811 79,570,943 13,416,488
Woeighted average number of
common shares 2,159,699, 094 24590898 984 2159099984 2 159 999 994 2 159 299 0494
Basic and diluted EPS .04 0.02 0.05 0.04 0.1

During 2021, the Company converted all of its common and preference shares to one class common
share and reduced all the par values to Po.25 per share thereby increasing the number of common shares
issued and outstanding (Note 14). The conversion and subsequent decrease in par value were considered
in the calculation of weighted average number of common shares ouistanding retrospectively for all the
periods presented.

The Company has no potential dilutive common shares for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and
2020 and for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, Therefore, basic and diluted EPS are
the same.
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Note 22 - Financial risk and capital management and fair value estimation

22,1 Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks from its use of financial instruments:
market risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management program seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, The policies for
managing specific risks are summarized below.

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. It monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

22,11 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, security price and foreign
exchange rates, will affect the Company’s total comprehensive income or the value of its financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return. Security price is deemed not applicable since the
Company has no debt or equity instruments traded in an active market. The management of these risks
is discussed as follows:

{a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates would unfavorably affect future
cash flows from finaneial instruments. The Company’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates primarily relates to loans payable with fixed interest rate which was assumed by the Parent
Company effective May 4, 2021. Management believes that the related interest rate risk on this
instrument is relatively insignificant having fixed interest rate.

The Company has no outstanding loans payable as at June 30, 2021 (December 31, 2020 - P1.04 billion,
December 31, 2019 - P1.1 billion) (Note 10).

(b} Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to U.S. Dollar, Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions, and
recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional
currency. Among others, management monitors the timing of settlements/payments to ensure that the
Company is not unfavorably exposed to fluctuations of foreign exchange rates.

The Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary liability as at June 30, 2021 refers to a portion
of lease liabilities amounting to US$20,195 (December 31, 2020 - US$20,392, December 31, 2019 -
US%20,549) with Philippine Peso equivalent of P0.98 million (December 31, 2020 - P0.98 million,
December 31, 2019 - P1.04 million).
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Dretails of foreign exchange losses (gains), net are as follows:

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
Note 2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Unrealized losses (gains), net 1,830 53,414 11,175 60,375 {3,906,498)
Realized losses, net 174 - 4,146 - -
18 2,004 53,414 15,321 60,375 (3,906,488}

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant due to the absence of material
transactions and balances denominated other than the Company’s functional currency.

22.1.2 Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
finaneial loss to the Company. The Company’s credit risk arises primarily from its cash in banks, trade
and other receivables, electric utility deposits, security deposits and restricted cash.

Exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these financial assets. The Company uses internal ratings to determine the
quality of its financial assets. The Company determined that its financial assets are all considered high
grade financial assets except for those that were fully provided for.

The maximum exposures to credit risk, pertaining to financial assets are as follows:

June 30, December 31, December 31,

Notes 2021 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents* 3 45,146,666 71,702,473 47,033,583
Trade and other receivables 4 62,116,108 260,849,329 128,630,106
Electric utility deposits 7 6,580,541 6,580,541 6,580,541
Security deposits 7 1,779,310 1,779,310 1,779,310
Restricted cash 7 752,584 615,197 308,357

116,375,210 341,526,850 184,331,897

*excluding cash on hand

Credit guality of financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash in bank

Cash deposited/placed in banks are considered stable as the barks qualify as universal and commercial
banks as defined by the Philippine Banking System and are approved by the BOD to minimize credit risk.
The amounts deposited in these banks are disclosed in Notes 3 and 7. Cash on hand is not subject to
credit risk.

{ii) Trade and other receivahles

The Company has significant concentration of credit risk on its transactions with TransCo, its sole
customer. However, this is brought down to an acceptable level since credit terms on billed fees for sale
of electricity are fixed as provided in formal agreements, and are accordingly collected in accordance with
this agreement and the Company’s credit policy with no reported defaults and write-offs in previous
years. The expected credit loss is determined to be immaterial by management.

The credit exposure on due from related parties is considered to be minimal as there is no history of
default and collections are expected to be made within 12 months. The balances of due from related
parties are considered as high-grade financial assets as the related parties have good financial standing
and are highly liquid. The expected credit loss is determined to be immaterial by management.
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Other receivables pertain to refund for overpaid insurance which has been long outstanding for more
than one (1) year. Full provision has been recognized for this receivable as at June 30, 2021 and
December 31, 2020,

(iii) Security deposits and electrical utility deposits

Security deposits and electrical utility deposits include cash required from the Company in relation to its
lease agreement and service agreement, respectively. These deposits are assessed as high grade as there
were no history of default and these are collectible upon termination of or at the end of the term of the
agreements. The expected credit loss is determined to be immaterial by management.

22.1.3 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as these fall
due. The objective of the Company is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of credit lines available from related parties and local banks. The policy of the Company
is to first exhaust Jines available from related parties before local bank lines are availed. The Company
also has available due from related parties which can be readily collected to settle maturing obligations.

The Company seeks to manage its liquidity risk by maintaining a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility. The Company regularly evaluates its projected and actual cash flows. It alse continuously
assesses conditions in the financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities.

‘The Company’s financial liabilities grouped into relevant maturity dates are as follows:

Less than More than
Notes 1 year 1 year
June 30, 2021

Trade payables and other liabilities* 9 7,095,996 -
Due to a related party 11 180,224,952 -
Interest™ 3,998,155 48,717,920
Lease liabilities 20 309,746 50,545,608
191,628,849 97,203,528

December 31, 2020
Trade payables and other labilities* 9 40,101,734 -
Loans payable 10 126,446,281 909,809,551
Interest** 28,985,465 48,733,444
Lease liabilities 20 294,139 51,060,996
195,827,619  1,009,603,891

December 31, 2019
Trade payables and other liabilities* 9 11,592,448 -
Loans payable 10 120,913,719 974,342,172
Interest™ 64,056,894 77,751,856
Lease liabilities 20 21,201 51,410,357
196,584,262  1,103,504,385

*excluding due fo government agencies

**expected tnterest on borrowings up to assignment date and lease labilities up to maturity date

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for lease liabilities, which is
equivalent to their carrying balance as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Company expects
to settle the above financial liabilities within their contractual maturity date.
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22.2 Capital management

The Company maintains a sound capital to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern to provide
returns to shareholder and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economie
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholder, pay-off existing debts, return capital to shareholder or issue new shares.

The BOD has overall responsibility for monitoring capital in proportion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios
are set in the light of changes in the external environment and the risks underlying the Company’s
business, operations and industry.

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity, which comprises of deposits for future shares
subscription, issued capital, retained earnings, and remeasurement on retirement benefits. The
Company monitors capital on the basis of net gearing ratio, which is calculated as total debt divided by
total equity. Total debt is defined as short-term and long-term bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, while equity is total equity as shown in the statements of financial position.

The net debt reconciliation and gearing ratio are presented below:

June 30, December 31, Decamber 31,

Notes 2021 2020 2019
Loans payable, beginning 10 1,036,255,832  1,095,255,891 1,216,014,453
Cash flows {31,611,570) (61,383,636)  (122,727,273)
Non-cash movement 10 (1,004,644,262) 2,363,677 1,968,711
Loans payable, end 10 - 1,036,255,832  1,085,255,891
Cash and cash equivalents 3 (45,206,666) {71,737,473) (47,064,583)
Net {asset) debt (45,206,666) 064,518,358  1,048,191,308
Total equity 1,491,366,052 565,104,724 460,989,912
Net gearing ratio 0.03:1 1.70:1 2.27:1

Non-cash movement pertains to the amortization of debt issuance cost and assignment of loans payable
(Note 10).

22.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values of the financial instrument components of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, other non-current assets, trade payables and other liabilities (excluding due to government
agencies), due to a related party, loans payable and lease liabilities approximate their fair values, due to
the liquidity, short-term maturities and nature of such items. The fair values of other non-current assets,
lease liabilities and non-current portion of loans payable are close to market rates. The fair value of due
to a related party amounted to P173,389,409 determined using discounted cash flow approach by
applying current market interest rates of 1.95% (Level 2).

As at June 30, 2021, December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company does not have financial instruments
that are measured using the fair value hierarchy.

Note 23 - Critical accounting estimates and assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires management to make
estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
the related notes. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances,
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The Company makes estimates, assumptions and judgments concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates,
assumptions and judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustinent to the carrying
amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

23.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Company uses estimates in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Notes 24.3 and 24.4.

In 2020, the Company provided allowance for doubtful accounts for other receivables amounting to
P1.94 million (June 30, 2021, December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 - nil). This is equivalent to the
full lifetime expected credit loss using the expected credit loss model, hence, any sensitivity analysis is no
longer deemed necessary. The carrying values of the Company’s trade and other receivables are shown in
Note 4.

(b) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use and are updated if expectations differ
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear or technical and commercial ohsolescence.
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on factors that include asset
utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of
assets based on the related industry benchmark information and land lease term where the solar power
plant is situated. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in
these estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned. The estimated useful life used for
solar plant and equipment was higher than the current land lease term of the Company since based on
the management’s assessment, the Company can still use the solar plant and equipment beyond the
current land lease term.

In 2019, the BOD approved the change in the estimated usefu] life of the substation and transmission
lines and solar plant and equipment from 23 years to 15 years and 30 years, respectively. The net effect
of the change in useful life is disclosed in Note 6.

If the actual useful lives of these assets are prolonged or shortened by five (5) years, income before tax
would be as follows:

Impact on income before tax
Increase {Decrease}

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Prolonged by 5 years P4.45 million P4.45 million F8.92 million P8.90 mitlion P10.85 million
Shortened by 5 years (P6.51 million}  {P6.51 million) {P13.03 millon) {P13.04 million)  (P23.05 million)

The range used was based on the management’s assessment where potential impact to operations might
oceur. The carrying values of the Company’s property, plant and equipment are shown in Note 6.
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(¢} Determining incremental borrowing rate

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company uses the government bond vield, adjusted
for the credit spread specific to the Company and security using the right-of-use asset. The basis of the
discount rates applied by the Company are disclosed in Note 20. Any change in the rates would have
direct impact to interest expense for the period and on lease liability. Higher discount rate will result in
lower interest expense and lease liability; and vice versa.

(d) Retirement benefit obligation

The present value of the defined benefit obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined
using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used include discount rate and salary increase rate. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related retirement benefit obligation. Details of retirement
benefit obligation and the related sensitivity analysis are disclosed in Note 13.

23.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies
(e} Recoverability of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets such as property, plant and equipment and investment properties
are tested for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carTying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less cost to sell or value in use, Management believes that there are no indications that
the carrying amount of non-financial assets may not be recoverable. Details of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties are disclosed in Notes 6 and 8, respectively.

(b) Critical judgment in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or pericds after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The Company considers the factors below as the
most relevant in assessing the options:

* Ifthere are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

« Ifany leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

# Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs
and business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

Extension options in the Company’s lease agreement have not been included in the lease liabilities
because the Company’s lease agreement states that extension and termination should be made upon
mutual agreement by both parties and considering the estimated useful life of the solar power plant and
the effectivity of the SESC. The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances occurs which affects this assessment and that is within the control of the lessee.
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(¢} Estimating cost of dismantling, removing or restoring items of fixed assets

Determining the asset retirement obligation requires estimation of the costs of dismantling, installing
and restoring lease properties to their original condition. The Company determined the amount of
obligation by obtaining estimates of dismantling costs from the proponent responsible for the operation
of the asset, discounted at the Company’s current credit-adjusted risk-iree rate depending on the life of
the capital costs. While it is believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of such costs are
reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the recorded expense or
obligation in future periods.

As at December 31, 2019, the obligation amounted to P1.06 million (Note 12). During 2020, the
Company reversed the full amount of the provision as management assessed that this is no longer
expected to be settled in the future. No asset retirement obligation was recognized in 2021.

{d} Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining income taxes. There are many transactions and
caleulations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of business.
The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due,

Where the {inal tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. Further, recognition of deferred income taxes depends on management’s
assessment of the probability of available future taxable income against which the temporary differences
can be applied. The components of unrecognized deferred income taxes are shown in Note 19.

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each reporting date and
reduces the amounts to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will allow all
or part of its deferred incorne tax assets to be utilized.

Further, the computation for income taxes and related balances have been made within the context of full
PFRS. There is no significant difference in the recorded amounts had the computation was made under
PAS 34, “Interim Financial Statements”.

Note 24 - Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year and
corresponding interim reporting period, except for the adoption of new and amended standards as set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated. The accompanying interim financial statements of the Company have been prepared for inclusion
in the REIT Plan in relation to a planned capital-raising activity.

24.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with PFRS. The term PFRS
in general includes all applicable PFRS, PAS, and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations
Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared using historical cost basis.
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain eritical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
Note 23.

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company

No new standards, amendments or interpretations that are effective beginning January 1, 2021 are
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial staternents.

(b) New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the
Company

A number of new standards, and amendments and interpretations to existing standards are effective for
the Company’s annual periods after January 1, 2021 and have not been early adopted nor applied by the
Company in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to be relevant and have an
effect on the financial statements of the Company, while the most relevant one is set out as follows:

+ Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to PAS 1 (effective January 1,
2023). The amendments affect only the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial
position - not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability income or expenses, or the
information that entities disclose about those items. The amendments:

o clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on rights that
are in existence at the end of the reporting period and align the wording in all affected
paragraphs to refer to the ‘right’ to defer settlement by at least 12 months and make explicit that
only rights in place ‘at the end of the reporting period’ should affect the classification of a
liability;

o clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liability; and

o make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's classification of
liabilities. The amendments provided clear guidance which will support the Company’s assessment.

* Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to PAS 37 (effective January 1,
2022). The amendment to PAS 37 clarifies that the direct costs of fulfilling a contract include both
the incremental costs of fulfilling the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to
fulfilling contracts. Before recognizing a separate provision for an onerous contract, the entity
recognizes any impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the contract, The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

No other standards, amendments or interpretations that are effective after January 1, 2021 are expected
to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

24.2 Cash and cash equivalents; Restricted cash
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of

cash with original maturities of three (3} menths or less from the date of acquisition and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts.
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Restricted cash is subject to regulatory restrictions and therefore not available for general use of the
Company. This is classified as non-current asset as this is expected to be collected more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

Other relevant policies are disclosed in Note 24.4.

24.3 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which have a 60-day credit term, and other receivables are initially recognized and
carried at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortized cost, less provision for impairment
toss. The fair value of trade receivables at initial recognition is equivalent to the original inveice amount
(as the effect of discounting is immaterial).

The Company applies the simplified approach in measuring expected credit loss which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure expected credit loss, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is charged
against profit or loss in the statement of total comprehensive income.

When a receivable remains uncollectible after the Company has exerted all legal remedies, it is written-
off against the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-
off are credited to profit or loss in the statement of total comprehensive income.

The expected loss rates on trade receivables are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 12
months before the beginning of each reporting period and the corresponding historical credit losses
experience within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors atfecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Company has identified the gross domestic product and inflation to be the most
relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in this factor.

Other relevant policies are disclosed in Note 24.4.
24.4 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finaneial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Company recognizes a financial instrument in the
statement of financial position, when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument,

Financial assets
(a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and amortized cost. The
Company did not hold financial assets under the category financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI as at
June 30, 2021, December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. The Company’s financial assets measured at amortized cost
comprise of cash and cash equivalents (Note 24.2), trade and other receivables (Note 24.3), security
deposits and electric utility deposits (Note 24.7) and restricted cash in bank (Note 24.2) in the statement
of financial position.
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Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial
assets, if any, is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognized directly in the statement of total comprehensive income and
presented as other income or expense. Impairment losses, if any, are presented in the statement of total
comprehensive income within operating expenses.

(b) Recognition and measurement
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date (the date on which
the Company comnits to purchase or sell the asset). Financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.

(i) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

(¢) Impairment

The Company recognizes an expected credit loss for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. Expected
credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will inchude cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. Expected credit
losses are recognized in two stages. For credit exposure for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month expected credit loss).
For those credit exposure for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a Joss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime expected credit loss).

For cash and cash equivalents, due from related parties, other receivables, security deposits and electric
utility deposits and restricted cash, the Company applies a general approach in calculating expected
credit losses. The Company recognizes a loss allowance based on either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on these financial assets since initial recognition. The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is charged against profit or
loss in the statement of total comprehensive income. When the financial asset remains uncollectible
after the Company has exerted all legal remedies, it is written-off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited to profit or loss in the statement of
total comprehensive income.

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating expected credit losses.
Therefore, the Company does not track ehanges in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance
based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision
muatrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in
Note 24.3.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past due. However,
in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
ameounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written-off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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(d) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial iabilities

{a} Classification

The Company elassifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: financial Habilities at fair value
through profit or loss (including financial Habilities held for trading and those that are designated at fair

value); and financial liabilities at amortized cost. The Company's financial liabilities are limited to
financial labilities at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost pertain to issued financial instruments that are not classified as fair
value through profit or loss and contain contract obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to
the holder or to settle the obligation other than the exchange of a fixed amount of cash. These are
included in current liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting period
which are classified as non-current liabilities.

The Company’s trade payables and other liabilities (excluding due to government agencies)

(Note 24.11), due to a related party (Note 24.19), loans and interest payables (Note 24.15) and lease
liabilities (Note 24.18) are classified under financial liabilities at amortized cost.

(b} Recognition and measurement

(i) Initial recognition

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
(i1} Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
(¢} Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognized when extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or is
cancelled, expires, or paid.

Oifsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.
The details of the Company's financial assets and labilities subject to offsetting are disclosed in Note 11.

24.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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The fair value of 2 non-financial asset is measured based on its highest and best use. The asset’s current
use is presumed to be its highest and best use. The fair value of financial and non-financial liabilities
takes into account non-performance risk, which is the risk that the entity will not fulfil an obligation.

The Company classifies its fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2); and

= inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The appropriate level is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the asset or
liability is included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3. The Company uses specific valuation technique such as
discounted cash flow analysis to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

- The Company does not hold financial and non-financial assets and liabilities at fair value as at
June 30, 2021, December 31, 2020 and 2019.

24.6 Inputvalue-added tax

Input VAT is stated at historical cost less provision for impairment, if any. Provision for unrecoverable
input VAT, if any, is maintained by the Company at a level considered adequate to provide for potential
uncollectible portions of the claims. The Company, on a continuing basis, makes a review of the status of
the claims designed to identify those that may require provision for impairment losses. Input VAT is
derecognized once applied against output VAT or claimed for refund.

24.7 Prepayments and other assets

Prepayments and other assets are expenses paid in cash and recorded as assets before these are used or
consumed, as the services or benefits will be received in the future. Prepayments and other assets expire
and are recognized as expense either with the passage of time or through use or consumption.

Prepayments and other assets are carried at cost and are included in current assets, except when the
related goods or services are expected to be received and rendered more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period, in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.

Security deposits and electrical utility deposits pertain to advances to lessor relating to rent and service

providers, respectively, which will be refunded at the end of the service periods, as determined in the
contract agreements. Other relevant policies are disclosed in Note 24.4.
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24.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items, which comprises its purchase
price and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of total comprehensive income within cost of services or operating expenses
whichever is applicable during the financial period in which these are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives (in years), as follows:

Solar plant and equipment 30
Substation and transmission lines 15
Computer equipment 3
Service vehicle 5

Land is not depreciated.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and estimated useful lives are reviewed periodically, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 24.10).

The cartying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal at which time the cost and related acenmulated
depreciation is removed from the accounts. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized under other income or expense in the statement of total comprehensive income.

24.9 Investinent properties

Investment properties are properties (land or building - or part of a building - or both) held by the owner
or by lessee under a lease to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for use in the
operations or for administrative purposes; or sale in the ordinary course of business.

The initial cost of the investment properties consists of its purchase price, including non-refundable
purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost and
accounted in accordance with PAS 16, “Property, plant and equipment”.

Investment properties are derecognized upon disposal or when the investment properties are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment properties are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized
under other operating income or expense in the statement of total comprehensive income in the period of
the retirement or disposal.
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Investment properties acquired through equity-settled transactions are measured in reference to the fair
value of investment properties, unless the fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the Company cannot
estimate reliably the fair value of the investment properties received, the entity shall measure the value of
the investment properties, and the corresponding increase in equity, indirectly, by reference to the fair
value of the equity instrument.

Other relevant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 24.8.
24.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life such as investment properties (related to land) not subject to
amortization is evaluated annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Assets that have definite useful lives and are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-finanecial assets other than
goodwill that are previously impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the Impairment at each
reporting date. Subsequent reversals are credited to other income in the statement of total
comprehensive income,

24.11 Trade payables and other liabilities

Trade payables and other liabilities are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers with average credit terms of 30 days. Trade payables and
other liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, these
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables and other liabilities are recognized initially at transaction price and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables and other liabilities are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled, or has expired. Where an existing liability is replaced by anether from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
exchange or modification is ireated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of total
comprehensive income within other income or expense.

Other relevant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 24.4,

24.12 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
Dast events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. Where
there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as
finance cost in the statement of total comprehensive income.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision shall be reversed and derecognized in the statement of
financial position.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not
recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit is probable. Ifit
becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income
are recognized in the financial statements,

24.13 Equity
(a} Share capital

The Company’s share capital is composed of common and preferred shares at par value. The amount of
proceeds from the issnance or sale of common and preferred shares representing the aggregate par value
is credited to share capital.

Proceeds in excess of par value of shares issued or additional capital contribution without corresponding
issuance of shares are credited to share premium.

Redeemable preference shares are classified as equity if the redemption is at the option of the Company.
However, if redeemable at the option of the holder, these are classified as liabilities.

After initial measurement, share capital and share premium, if any, are carried at historical cost and are
classified as equity in the statement of financial position.

(b) Deposits for future shares subscription

Deposits for future shares subscription pertain to deposits made by the subscribers of Company’s shares
through cash and/or non-cash considerations. These are classified as equity if and only if all of the
following elements are present:

» the unissued authorized share capital of the Company is insufficient to cover the amount of shares
indicated in the contract;

« there is approval on the proposed increase in authorized share capital (for which a deposit was
made);

+ there is shareholder’s approval of said proposed increase; and

 theapplication for the approval of the proposed increase has been presented for filing or has been
filed with the SEC.

Otherwise, the deposits are presented as financial liabilities. Deposits for future shares subscription are
derecognized and converted to share capital once corresponding shares have been issued.

(c) Retained earnings (Deficit)

Retained earnings (Deficit) includes current and prior years’ results of operations, net of transactions
with shareholder and dividends declared, if any.
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(d) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to Company’s shareholder is recognized as a liability in its financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved and declared by the BOD.

24.14 Revenue and cost recognition
The following is a description of principal activities from which the Company generates its revenue.
(a) Sale of solar energy

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customer which pertains to generation of
electricity at a point in time when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customers at
transaction price that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be settled in exchange
for the services.

The Company’s current revenue stream is generation of eleciricity from solar power energy which
management assessed as a single performance obligation. Sale of electricity is recognized whenever the
electricity generated by the Company is transmitted through the transmission line designated by the
buyer for a consideration.

Revenue from sale of electricity is based on the applicable FIT rate as transaction price as approved by
the ERC. Revenue from sale of electricity is recognized monthly based on the actual energy delivered.

(b) Rental income

Rental income arising from operating lease agreements on its investment properties is recognized as
incormne on a straight-line basis over the lease term or based on a certain percentage of the earnings of the
lessees plus any variable component which are measured based on the actual results of operations of the
lessees, as provided under the terms of the lease contract.

Other relevant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 24.18.
(c) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time proporiion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. Interest income is recognized
using the effective interest method.

(d) Costs and expenses

Costs and expenses are recognized in the statement of total comprehensive income when decrease in
future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be
measured reliably. Costs and expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between the
costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and rational
allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and
the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or immediately when an
expenditure produces no futnre economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future economie
benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statement of financial position as an
asset.

Costs and expenses in the statement of total comprehensive income are presented using the function of

expense method. Cost of services are expenses incurred that are associated with the services rendered.
Operating expenses are costs attributable to administrative and other business activities of the Company.
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24.15 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption ameunt is recognized in the statement of total comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan capitalized
as a contra liability account and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are derecognized in the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the statement of total
comprehensive income under finance cost.

A substantial modification of the terms of the an existing borrowings or part of the borrowings is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and a recognition of new financial
liability. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid (net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective
interest rate), is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of
the original financial liability. The resnlting difference is recognized as a gain or loss under other income,
net in the statement of total comprehensive income.

Where the terms of a financial Hability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized as other
income or expense in the statement of total comprehensive income, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. In cases of breaches in loan
covenants prior to the end of a reporting period, borrowings are classified as current liability, unless a
sufficient waiver of the covenant is granted by the lender, such that the borrowings do not become
immediately repayable.

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construzetion or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized and charged
under finance cost in the statement of total comprehensive income in the year in which they are incurred.

24.16 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income taxes. Tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except to the extent that that it relates to items recoghized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax expense is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amournts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
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Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation anthority where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are derecognized when relevant temporary differences have
been realized and settled, respectively. The Company reassesses at each reporting the need to recognize
previously unrecognized deferred income tax assef.

24.17 Employee benefits
(c) Short-term benefits obligation

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(d) Retirement benefits

The Company has a defined benefit plan, which is unfunded and covers substantially all of its qualified
employees. The defined benefit plan satisfies the minimum benefit requirements of RA No. 7641,
otherwise known as the “Retirement Pay Law”.

A defined benefit plan is a retirement plan that defines an amount of retirement benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent on certain factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The retirement benefit obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms to maturity which approximate the terms of the retirement benefit obligation.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statements of financial position is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions, if material, are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognized imimediately in profit or loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation. This cost is charged to profit or loss.
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{c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these henefits,
The Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Company
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundaney, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

24.18 Leases

Accounting policies applied beginning January 1, 2019
Company as a lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. The right-of-use
asset is amortized over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

{a)} Measurement of lease liabilities
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
s payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for the Company’s leases, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obfain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions,

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

* where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

* uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held for entities which do not have recent third-party financing; and

» makes adjustments specific to the lease (i.e. term, currency and security).

Lease payments are allocated between principal and interest expense. The interest expense is charged to

the statement of total comprehensive income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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(b) Measurement of right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
« any initial direct costs; and
* restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally amortized over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-
use asset is amortized over the underlying asset’s useful life.

(c) Extension and termination options

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The lease term is reassessed if an opton is
actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise {or not exercise) it.

The assessment of reasonable certainty is revised only if a significant event or a significant change in
circumnstances oceurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

Aceounting policies applied until December 31, 2018

Cormpany as a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are

classified as operating leases. Fixed lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statements of
total comprehensive income on a straight-line basis while the variable rent is recognized as an expense
based on terms of the lease contract.

Company as a lessor

The Company determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
assets are classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments received are recognized as an income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for variable rent which is recognized when earned.

24.19 Related party relationships and transactions

(a) Related party relationship

A related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities
which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between and/or among the reporting
enterprises and their key management personnel or directors.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form.
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{b) Related party transaction

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and
a related party regardless of whether a price is charged or not.

24.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The financial
statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Philippine Peso using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rate of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign eurrencies are recognized in the statement of total
comprehensive income through profit or loss.

24.21 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to the Company’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Company’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar econornic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment, Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

24.22 Earnings per share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding, after considering impact of any share dividends, share
splits or reverse share splits during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the earnings and
number of shares for the effects of dilutive potential common shares.

The number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares changes as a result of a share split or reverse share
split are applied retrospectively and adjust the calculation of basic and diluted EPS for all periods
presented. This applies regardless of whether the change oceurred during the reporting period or after
the end of the period before the financial statements are authorized for issue.

24.23 Seasonal fluctuations

The Company’s revenues (including future rental income from investment properties) are correlated to
the amount of electricity generated by its solar power plant and the solar power plants operating on the
investment properties, which in turn is dependent upon irradiance and weather conditions. Irradiance
and weather conditions have natural variations from season to season and from year-to-year and may
also change permanently because of climate change or other factors. The Company believes that such
seasonality is effectively managed as the Company and its lessees have installed systems to monitor the
daily output of such solar power plants and calibrate and improve output, as the need arises, based on an
expected performance ratio.
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24.24 Events after the reporting period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the reporting
date {adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

24.25 Reclassification and eorrection of errors

The Company reclassified finance costs for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounting to P87.62
million from other income, net as a separate line item in the statement of total comprehensive income.

In addition, the Company also adjusted its statements of cash flows as follows:

o Interest payments on loans from a bank amounting to P3.57 million and P11.99 million for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively that should have been classified as a cash flow from
an operating activity under changes in working capital related to trade payables and other liabilities;
and

»  Principal payment of loan from a shareholder amounting to P241.00 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018 as a non-cash activity since this pertains to the assumption of loan by the Parent
Company from Lumos.

The impact of the correction of error in the statements of cash flows are as follows:

Previously Adjusted
reported balances Adjustments balances
December 31, 2019
Cash flows from operating activities 148,877,159 3,573,539 150,450,698
Cash flows from financing activities {186,431,516) (3.573,539)  (190,005,055)
December 31, 2018
Cash flows from operating activities 423,259,558  (252,984,450) 170,275,108
Cash flows from financing activities (522,808,277) 252,984,450 (269,823,827)

The opening halances of assets, lHabilities and equity as at December 31, 2019 in the statement of
financial position were not presented since the reclassification did not have any impact on the previously
reported balances. The reclassification also did not impact previously reported financial position, net
income and retained earnings.

Note 25 - Subsequent events

Subseguent to June 30, 2021, the Company entered into various significant agreements as follows:

Company as a lessee

The Company entered to various lease contracts, as a lessee, with third parties as follows:

* Assignment of lease contract of a land property located in Brgy. Talavera, Toledo City, Cebu by
Citicore Solar Cebu, Inc. (formerly First Tolede Solar Energy Corp.), an entity under common
control, with a third party, to the Company;

» Sublease agreement and lease contract with third parties for land properties located in
Brgy. Dalayap, Tarlac City, Tarlac previously being leased by Citicore Solar Tarlac 2, Inc. (formerly
nv vogt Philippines Solar Energy Four, Inc.), an entity under common control; and

s Lease agreement with a third party for a land property in Brgy. Rizal, Silay City, Negros Occidental
previously being leased by Citicore Solar Negros Occidental, Inc. (formerly Silay Solar Power, Inc.),
an entity under common control.
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The impact of these lease agreements in the financial statements during the period of commencement
will depend on future economic conditions including, but not limited to the interest rate implicit to the
lease or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. As at reporting date, the Company assessed that
these lease agreements will result in an increase in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the
statements of financial position and corresponding increase in amortization expense and finance cost in
the statermnents of total comprehensive income.

Company as a lessor
The Company entered to various lease contracts, as a lessor, with related parties as follows:

* Sublease agreement of the land properties mentioned above to related parties.
e Lease contract of the land property located in Brgy. Armenia, Tarlac City, Tarlac with CST1.

These will result in the recognition of rental income on a straight-line basis over the lease term for the
lease and sublease agreements classified as operating lease in the statements of total comprehensive
income and corresponding lease receivables under trade and other receivables in the statements of
financial position, if any, upon the effectivity of the lease and sublease agreements.

Memorandum of agreement for future sale and leaseback transaction

The Company entered into a memorandum of agreement with Citicore South Cotabato, Ine. (CSCI)
(formerly nv vogt Philippine Solar Energy One, Inc.) and Citicore Bulacan, Ine. {(CBI) (formerly Bulacan
Solar Energy Corporation}, entities under common control, for the future sale of land properties owned by
CSCI and CBI to the Company and subsequent leaseback.

These will result in the recognition of investent properties in the statements of financial position for the
land properties that will be acquired and recognition of rental income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term for the leaseback, to the related parties, classified as operating lease in the statements of total
comprehensive income and corresponding lease receivables under trade and other receivables in the
statements of financial position, if any, upon the consumtnation of the agreement.

The management has determined that these are non-adjusting events.

Note 26 - Impact of COVID-19

In the worldwide context of COVID-19 pandemic disease and unprecedented crisis that started in the
first quarter of 2020, the Philippine Government has taken measures which caused disruptions to
businesses and economic activities, and its impact continues to evolve.

In 2020, the government enacted the Republic Act No. 11649, also known as the “Bayanihan to Heal as
One Act” providing relief to loan payments, interest and penalties thereon. The Company availed of this
relief which resulted in the deferral of its principal payment and interest on its loans payable to DBP.
This, in effect, spreads the deferred principal and interest amount to the remaining payments to be made
throughout the term of the loan.

Aside from the deferral of the principal and interest on loans payable, the Company incurred additional
expenses due to the quarantine and social distancing measures required by the Philippine Government.
Based on the management’s assessment, the COVID-19 pandemic had no other significant impact in the
Company’s financial statements as at and for the six months ended June 30, 2021.

The Company’s financial statermnents as at and for the six months ended June 30, 2021 have been
prepared applying the going concern principle. The management of the Company is not aware of any
other significant uncertainties arising after the June 30, 2021 that would have any impact on its ability to
continue as going concern. The Company is continuously monitoring the situation.
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Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

{A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Schedule A - Financial Assets
June 30, 2021

Principal amount Amount shown in Income

Name of issuing entity and association of each of bonds and the statement of received and
issue notes  financial position accrued
Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash in banks

BDQ Unibank, Inc. - 3,622,334 3,371

Development Bank of the Philippines - 2,437,096 1,559

Security Bank Corporation - 833,553 354
Short-term placements

Development Bank of the Philippines - 38,253,683 102,419
Cash on hand - 60,000 -
Total cash and cash equivalents - 45,206,666 107,703
Trade and other receivables - 680,172,013 -
Electric utility deposits - 6,580,541 -
Security deposits - 1,779,310 -
Restricted cash - 752,584 -
Total financial assets - 114,491,114 107,703




Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

{A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal
Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

June 30, 2021

Balance at Amounts Balance at
beginning of Armnounts written- the end of
Name and designation of debtor period Additions collecied off Current _ Non-current the period
Advanges to direclors, officers,
employees* NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A NiA NfA
Due from related parties
Clticore Renewable
Energy Corporation 129,887,214 80,405,458 - - - - 210,292,672
Citicore Power, Ing,™ 87,021,747 - {87,021,747) - - - -
Total due from related parties 218,908,961 80,405,458  (87,021,747) - - 210,282,672

*As required by Rule 68 of the Securities Regulation Code, this schedule shall be filed with respect to each
person among the directors, officers and employees from whom an aggregate indebtedness of more than Pi
million or one percent (1%) of total assets, whichever is less, is owed for items arising outside the ordinary
course of business. There were no advances with respect to each person among the directors, officers and
employees amounting fo more than P1 million outside the ordinary course of business as at June 30, 2021.

**During 2021, the Company offset the intercompany receivables with intercompany payables and
consolidated the ending balance to the Parent Cornpany.




Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

{A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Schedule C - Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the
consolidation of the financial statements

June 30, 2021

Name and Balance at Amounts Balance at the
designation of  beginning of Amounts written- end of the
debtor period Additions collected off Current Noncurrent period
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A




Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inec.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)
Schedule D - Long Term Debt

June 30, 2021

Amount shown
under caption
"Current portion of

Amount shown
under caption

Title of Issue Amount long-term debt" in "Long-Term Debt"
and type of authorized refated balance in related balance
obligation by indenture sheet sheet Notes
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A




Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Schedule E - Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term loans from Related Companies)
June 30, 2021

Balance at the Balance at the
beginning of the period end of the period

- 180,224,952

Name of related party
Citicore Renewabls Energy Corporation




Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)
Schedule F - Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

June 30, 2021

Name of issuing entity of Title of issue of

securities guaranteed by each class of Total amount  Amount owned by

the Company for which this securifies guaranteed and person for which  Nature of
statement is filed guarantieed outstanding  statementis filed guarantee

N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A




Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation}
Schedule G - Share Capital

June 30, 2021

Number of shares

reserved for
Number of options, warrants, Number of shares Directors,
authorized Number of issued  conversion, and held by officers,
Titte of issue shares  and outstanding other rights related parties and employees Qthers
Common shares 2 159,980 994 2,159,999,994 N/A 2,159,899,874 120 N/A




Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.
{A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

For the six months ended June 30, 2021
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted to available for
dividend declaration, beginning

Add : Net income actually earned during the period
Net income during the period closed to retained eamnings

{ ess:

Add:

Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Equity in net income of associate/joint venture

Unrealized foreigh exchange gain - net (except those
attributable to cash and cash equivalents)

Unrealized actuarial gain

Fair value adjustment

Fair value adjustment of investment property
resuiting to gain

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS - gain

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained
earnings as a result of certain transactions
accounted for under the PFRS

Non-actual losses

Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS - loss

Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (after tax)

Net income actually earned during the period

Add (Less):

Dividends declarations during the period
Appropriations of retained eamings during the period
Reversal of appropriation

Effect of prior period adjustments

Treasury shares

Unappropriated retained earnings available for dividend
declaration, ending

85,199,866

25,104,725

89,199,866

114,304,591




A Map Showing the Relationships between and among the Company and its

Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Ultimate Parent Company, Middle Parent, Subsidiaries or Co-subsidiaries and Associates

June 30, 2021
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Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Inc.
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

A Map Showing the Relationships between and among the Company and its
Ultirnate Parent Company, Middle Parent, Subsidiaries or
Co-subsidiaries and Associates (Schedule A)

June 30, 2021
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Enfinity Philippines Renewable Resources Ine.

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of Citicore Renewable Energy Corporation)

Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicator

As at and for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2020

(With comparative ratios as at and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018}

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,

December 31,

2021 2020 2020 2019 2018
Current ratio® 2.93x 1.36x 1.32x 0.94x 0.84x
Acid test ratio® 2.66x 1.31x 1.26x 0.88x 0.77x
Solvency ratio® - 0.22x 0.10x 0.19x 0.12x
Debt-to-equity ratio® - 1.83x 2.09x 2.38x 3.19x
Asset-to-equity ratio® 1.18x 3.15x% 3.42x 3.66x 4.41x
Interest rate coverage ratiof 4.50x 3.56x 3.42x 3.02x 1.66x
Debt service coverage ratio? 4.45x% 1.19x 0.87x 1.09x 0.70x
Net debt/ EBITDAR {0.37)x 4.23x 8.82x 5.05x 7.75x
Earnings per share (Php) 0.04 0.06 0.02 0.04 0.01
Book value per sharel 0.69 8.06 3.47 (0.51) (7.06)
Return on assets® 5.03% 6.00% 2.82% 4.72% 0.67%
Return on equity’ 8.68% 20.29% 9.97% 18.89% 3.58%
Net profit margin™ 68.23% 38.69% 34.17% 32.08% 5.15%

» Current assets/current liabilities

h Cash and cash equivalents + Trade and other receivables, net/Current liabilities

¢ Net operating profit after tax + depreciation and amortization/Loans payable

1 Loans payable/ Total equity

¢ Total assets/ Total equity

T Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization/Interest expense

¢ Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization/Current loan payable + Interest expense + Current lease
liabilities

b Short-term and long-term bank berrowings less cash and cash equivalents/Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization

i Net income attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company/Weighted average number of ordinary shares

iTotal equity less Preferred Equity/Total number of shares outstanding

k Net income attributable to owners of the Company/Average total assets

I Net income attributable to owners of the Company/Average total equity

mNet ingcome/Revenue



